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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of South City Projects
(Kolkata) Limited (“the Holding”), its subsidiaries and its step down subsidiaries (the Holding, its
subsidiaries and its step down subsidiaries collectively referred to as ‘the Group’), which
comprise the Consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March 2023, and the consolidated statement
of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditor on separate financial statements
of subsidiaries and step down subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters section below, except
for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Act
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) rules 2015, as amended (‘Ind AS’) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2023, and their
Consolidated profit, their Consolidated total comprehensive profit, their consolidated changesin
equity and their cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We state below qualification as reported by auditor of step-down subsidiary “IDPL” in their audited
financial statements merged herewith.

1) Inrespect of trade receivable amounting to Rs.1,09,50.01 Lakhs included in Note 8 of Consolidated
financial statements, we called for, but did not receive direct confirmations from customers. In the
absence of other appropriate audit evidence, we were unable to satisfy ourselves with regard to the
collectability of the stated receivable balance.

2) Inrespect of financial liabilities to customers amounting to Rs.1,292.00 Lakhs included in Note 21 of
Consolidated financial statements, we called for, but did not receive direct confirmations from
customers. In the absence of other appropriate audit evidence, we were unable to satisfy ourselves
with regard to the stated payable balance.
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Emphasis on Matter

1. We draw attention to Note no. 43 of the Consolidated Financial statements, the Company has not
charged interest during the year on the loan provided to its subsidiary (AAIPL). The loan taken by
AAIPL has been further given to step down subsidiaries for various real estate activities. AAIPL has
also not charged interest during the year on the loans given to step down subsidiaries, due to
sluggish real estate market condition.

Also, the company has not charged guarantee commission for the corporate guarantee given
against the loan taken by step down subsidiary viz Indocean Developers Private Limited (IDPL) for
the same reason.

The Company has neither impaired loan given to subsidiary nor investment made in subsidiary,
based on projected cash flow as certified by the Independent Valuer and management of IDPL.

2. Wedraw attention to Note no. 44 of the Consolidated Financial statements, which describes that
the Company has not charged interest during the year on the loan provided to its subsidiary
(AAIPL).The loan taken by AAIPL has been further given to step down subsidiaries for various real
estate activities. AAIPL has also not charged interest during the year on the loans given to step
down subsidiaries viz. AA Infra (Middle East) Limited ("AAIMEL") due to sluggish real estate
market condition.

The Company has impaired loan given to subsidiary based on the valuation report of land by the
independent valuer of step-down subsidiary viz. AA Infra (Middle East) Limited ("AAIMEL")

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Other Information

The Holding’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in Holding Company’s Annual report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries, audited by the other
auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other information as far as it relates to the
subsidiaries is traced from their financial statements audited by other auditors.
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If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its subsidiaries are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of
its subsidiaries to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act,2013,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For
the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually
or in aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Consolidated Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We also communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during.ograudit. ,f“i‘;f?‘:\?‘\\
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matters

a) We did not audit the financial statements of four step down subsidiaries, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of Rs. 71,662.90 lakhs as at 31st March 2023 and total revenues of
Rs. 17,873.74 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the step
down subsidiaries and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it
relates to the aforesaid step down subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

b) Certain of these step down subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their respective
countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing
standards applicable in their respective countries. The Company’s management has converted the
financial statements of such step down subsidiaries from accounting principles generally accepted
in their respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. These conversion
adjustments made by the Company’s management has been audited by us. Our opinion in so far
as it relates to the balances and affairs of such step down subsidiaries is based on the report of

other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Com pany and
audited by us.

The comparative consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2022,
included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements had been audited by the predecessor
auditors who had expressed an Qualified opinion as per their reports dated 3" December 2022 which has
been furnished to us by the Management and has been relied upon by us.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on
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in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors on the separate financial statements of the subsidiaries referred to in the Other
Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditor.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31stMarch, 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding and the reports of the statutory auditors of its
subsidiary companies and step-down subsidiaries, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our Separate Report in “Annexure
B” which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Holding and subsidiary companies and Step-down
subsidiaries. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of internal financial controls over financial reporting of those companies.

(g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under section 197(16)
In our opinion and according ta the information and explanation given to us, the Holding Company has
given remuneration to its director during the current year in accordance with the provisions of and
limits laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act..

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in o/up/opinﬁﬁﬁ-"" to.the best of our information and
according to the explanations giventous: : :
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i. The Holding Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations of the group on its
financial position in its Consolidated Financial Statements — Refer Note No. 33.

i The Holding Company and its Subsidiaries including step down subsidiaries did not have any

long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses

i There were no amounts which has been required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries including step down
subsidiaries.

(i) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the
Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For S K Agrawal & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 306033E/E300272

NUCENY Ni»
Place: Kolkata shok Kumar Sahoo
Date: 06" September, 2023 Partner

UDIN: 23306453BGWWAS2501 Membership No.: 306453
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we
state that:

(xxi) There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors
Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements except in
Clause xvi(a) & xvi(b) of AA Infraproperties Private Limited.

For S K Agrawal & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 306033E/E300272

- SahdD
Place: Kolkata shok Kumar Sahoo

Date: 06" September, 2023 Partner
UDIN: 23306453BGWWAS2501 Membership No.: 306453
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of South City Projects (Kolkata)
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding”) as on 31st March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of
the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended on that date.

We have not audited the internal financial controls of the subsidiary companies which are incorporated in
India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding and its subsidiary incorporated in India are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance note on Audit of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act,2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Holding and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit-evidence about the adequacy of the internal
| S I vl _”".\\)\ % . .
financial controls system over financial reportipg:ahd-:thef op rétl\ng\eﬁfectlveness. Our audit of internal
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financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
of the subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred
to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A

Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements..

Limitations of Internal Financial Controis Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
e
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on
the consideration of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the Holding
and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting as far as it relates to subsidiary companies, which
are companies incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such
companies incorporated in India. Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For S K Agrawal & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 306033E/E300272

Quw Sahgo

ok Kumar Sahoo
Partner
Membership No.: 306453

Place: Kolkata

Date: 06" September, 2023

UDIN: 233064SSBGWWA82501</ ~-
\
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South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(Rs in Lacs)

Particulars Note As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
ASSETS
Non-Current Asscts
() Property, Plant and liquipment 4.1 17,705.37 14,794.58
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 4.2 5,550.71 11,786.97
(c) Investment Property 4.3 5,499.98 5,121.85
(d) Other Intangible Asscts 4.4 0.77 2.77
(¢) Right t6 use of Assets 4.5 514.82 2,932.87
() Goodwill on Consolidation 5 3,900.78 3,900.78
() Financial Asscts
- Investments 6 27,282.67 2,111:67
- Other Financial Assets 10 9,588.76 26,383.46
() Deferred Tax Assets 23 487.52 387.67
(1) Other Non-Current Asscts 12 5,091.12 5,274.77
75,622.50 73,297.39
Current assets
(a) Inventories 13 51.408.50 68,897.83
(b) Financil asscrs
Investments 7 369.31 283.74
- I'rade Recetvables 8 14,541.59 10,438.33
- Cash and Cash Fquivalents 14.1 1,420.33 3,328.99
- Other Bank Balances 14.2 1,905.09 38.04
- Loans 9 508.74 1,539.17
- Other Financial Asscts 10 88.71 385.82
(¢) Assets Classified as held for sale 4.6 - 3,395.18
(d) Current Tax Asscts 11 1,797.48 2,767.29
(¢) Other Current Assets 12 3,718.57 4,000.15
75,758.32 95,074.54
TOTAL ASSETS 1,51,380.82 1,68,371.93
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
() Liquity Share capital 15 450.07 450.07
(bY Other Fquity 16 21,013.40 9,795.50
Equity atuibutable to cquity holders of the parent 21,463.47 10,245.57
(©) Non-Contrelling interests (259.22) (291.91)
Total Equity 21,204.25 9,953.66
LIABILITIFS
Non-Curreur Liabilitics
(@) Financial liabilites
(i) Borrowings 17 97,051.83 73,883.16
(1) Other Financial Liabilities 21 838.61 807.80
(b) Deferred Tax Liability 23 557.64 483.06
(¢) Other Non- Current Liabilities 22 7,395.06 7,462.37
(d) Provisions 19 265.20 271.78
1,06,108.34 82,914.17
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Eabili
(1) Borrow: 20 6,013.54 49,622.68
() “Iradic y
ol Guistandmy Diaes of Micro caterprises and Small | nLerprises 18 - 1:37
Tota! Outstanding Daes of Creditors other than Micro Fnterprises & Small Enterprises 7,945.58 8,849.15
(i) Other financial labilites 21 4,750.72 5,302.50
(b) Other current fabilities 22 5,306.08 11,206.46
() Provis 19 52.31 52195
24,068.23 75,504.10
[FOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILTIES 1,51,380.82 1,68,371.93
Summary of significant accounting policies 1-3
The accompanving notes mitegral part of the consohdated financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For S KAGRAWAL AND CO.CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 1LLP For South City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd.
Chartered Accountants .
Firm Registration No . 30603315/ 15300272 -
//__

Ashpk Kumar Sahoo

Pafiner

Membership No- 306453

Company §deretary (M. No: F8011)

Place: Koikata

Dircctor (DIN:00920¢19)

For South Ci
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South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Rs. in lacs)

Summary of significant accountng policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date

For S KAGRAWAL AND CO.CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No : 306033E/E300272

!]§hok(émur guhuo =

artner For South City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd.
Membership No- 306453

Place: Kolkata

Darted: 6th September 2023 ry (M. No: F8011)

Particulars Note 2022-23 2021-22
Income
Revenue from Operations 24 45,496.99 1,09,060.67
Other Income 25 12,894.60 7,293.86
Total Income 58,391.59 1,16,354.53
Expenses
Construction Costs 26 1,494.65 12,225.53
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories 27 5,100.99 (7,499.81)
Employee benefits expenses 28 877.12 529.49
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 29 1,213.24 1,262.26
Cost of Sales 30.1 7,979.23 77,055.74
Finance Cost 30.2 13,187.58 56,427.78
Other Expenses 31 13,580.56 7,305.79
Total Expenses 43,433.38 1,47,306.77
Profit / Loss before Tax 14,958.21 (30,952.24)
Tax Expenses
Current tax 2,344.42 352.88
Tax for carlicr vears 7.88 0.18
Deferred tax credit (net) (173.13) 676.68
Total Tax Expense 2,179.17 1,029.74
Total Profit/(Loss) for the Year (111) 12,779.04 (31,981.98)
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
1) Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
Re-Measurement gains on defined benefit plans (5.55) (5.26)
Income Tax etfect 1.60 1.52
i) Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Forcign exchange gain/ (loss) arising on translation of Forcign Operation (1,524.49) 16,499.69
Foreign exchange gain/’ (loss) arising on translation of Foreign .
Operation of Step down subsidiarics for last year
Income Tax effect = -
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (V) (1,528.44) 16,495.94
Total Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax attributable to (III+IV+V) 11,250.59 (15,486.04)
Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to:
liquity holders ol the parent 12,746.24 (28,155.95)
Non-controlling nterests 32.80 (3,826.03)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:
Liquity holders of the parent (1,528.34) 14,970.52
Non-controlling interests 0.11) 1,525.43
Earnings per share - Basic and Diluted (Nominal value Rs. 10 per share) 32 283.21 (625.59)
1-3

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For South City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd.

—_—

w——/

Director (DIN:0Q920819)
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“South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

& Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2023

m» a. Equity Share Capital
(Refer Note 15)

Equity shares of Rs 10 each issued, subscribed and
fully paid

At 31 March 2022
Issue of share capital

™At 31 March 2023

No. of R in Lacs

shares

45,00,700 450.07
45,00,700 450.07

“3 b. Other equity

(Refer Note 16)
_—

For the year ended 31st March, 2023 R in Lacs
Reserves & Surplus Items of OCI
)
Remeasure Foreign
-~ Securities ment of exchange Non
Particulars Pu:un'ucs Retained General Capital | gains/loss gain/loss on Total Controlling | Total Equity
A Earnings Reserve Reserve | on Defined | translation of Interest
-~ Account : :
Benefit Foreign
Plans Operation
™ As at 1 April 2022 660.00 (26,129.75) 20,000.00 - (12.12) 15,277.38 9,795.50 (291.91) 9,503.59
Profit/(loss) for the year - 12,746.24 - - 12,746.24 32.80 12,779.04
Other comprehensive income  for ) ) ) . (3.95) (1,524.39) (1,528.34) ©0.11) (1,528.44)
the year
Total Comprehensive Income for - 12,746.24 - . (3.95) (1,524.39) 11,217.90 32.69 11,250.59
the year
™, [ Additions/ deductions™* % " - _ _ _ - _ _
As at 31 March 2023 660.00 (13,383.52)|  20,000.00 - (16.07) 13,752.99 21,013.40 (259.22)|  20,754.18
@, * Due to further purchase of shares in subsidiary non-controlling interest is reduced accordingly.
-
For the year ended 31st March, 2022 R in Lacs
. Reserves & Surplus Items of OCI
Remeasure Foreign
- Securitics ment of exchange Non
Particulars ceurnes Retained General Capital | gains/ loss | gain/loss on Total Controlling | Total Equity
premium earnings Reserve Reserve | on Defined | translation of Interest
- Account ; ;
Benefit Foreign
Plans Operation
-
As at 1 April 2021 660.00 2,026.20 20,000.00 (8.38) 303.12 22,980.94 (1,890.15) 21,090.79
Profit/(loss) for the year (28,155.95) - - - (28,155.95) (3,826.03)|  (31,981.98)
-~ } A
Other comprehensive mcome  for - - - - (3.74) 14,974.26 14.970.52 1,525.43 16,495.94
the year
™ ITotal Comprehensive I f . - -
th" ASOMPIEDERSIVE SNCOMEROr (28,155.95) (3.74) 1497426 | (13,185.43) (2,300.61)|  (15,486.05)
e year
A |Additions/ deductions - - - - - - - 3,898.84 3,898.84
As at 31 March 2022 660.00 (26,129.75)|  20,000.00 - (12.12) 15,277.38 9,795.50 (291.91) 9,503.59
-
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
™ As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors
4 For S KAGRAWAL AND CO.CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP For South City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd.
Chartered Accountants o ,
. Firm Registration No : 306033E/E300272 &; gi; W
/V ~
- . u W Director (DIN:0£72081%5)
o AShok Kumar Sahoo
Partner For South City Projects (Kolkata) Lrd. For South City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd.
o Membership No- 306453
Place: Kolkata Company §ecretary (M. No: F8011) ector (DIN: . "7
. Dated: 6th September 2023
-l
-




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

R in Lacs
Pariculars Ag &t As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net profit before tax 14,958.21 (30,952.24)
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flow
Depreciation & Amortisation expense 1,213.24 1,262.26
Finance costs 13,187.58 56,427.78
Share Dematerialisation & ST Fxpenses 5.00
Sundry Balances Written Off 706.82 4.87
Profit on sale of non current investments (55.02) (51.64)
Sundry Balances Written Back (110.63) (14.24)
[Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets (22.31) (24.25)
Interest Income (1,275.35) (1,671.29)
Operating profit before working capital changes 28,602.55 24,986.24
Add:  Decrease in working capital
Adjustments for-
Decrease/(Increase) in Working Capital
Inventories 17,489.34 99,739.92
T'rade Receivables (4,103.206) (8,422.12)
T'rade Payables (1,501.12) 4,784.81
Loans, Deposits and Other Financial Assets 18,122.23 (17,454.34)
Other Current and Non Current assets 1,335.20 23,132.66
Other Financtal Liabilities (520.97) (10,797.64)
Provisions (482.22) (4,282.14)
Other Current and Non Current Liabilities (5,893.11) (70,026.31)
Cash generated in operations 53,048.64 41,661.08
Income Tax Paid (net of refund) 2,179.17 1,029.74
Net Cash inflow from Operating Activities 50,869.47 40,631.34
B.  CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest Recetved 1,275.35 1,671.29
Investment in Fixed Deposits (Net) (1,867.006) 0.13)
Sale of Non current Investments (24,493.68) (2,124.89)
(25,085.38) (453.73)
Less: Purchase of Property, Plant & liquipment (7,549.32) 1,957.43
Purchase of Non current Investments 85.57 75.22
Share Dematerialisation & ST Fxpenses 5.00
Net cash flow from Investing Activitics (17,621.64) (2,491.38)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Loan Taken/(Repaid) (20,440.47) 3,434.61
Interest paid (13,187.58) (56,427.78)
Net cash flow from Financing Activities (33,628.05) (52,993.17)
D. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE: (1,528.44) 16,495.95
Net increase / (decreasce) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C+D) (1,908.606) 1,642.74
Cash and Cash Lquivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer note-14.1) 3,328.99 1,686.25
Cash and Cash Iiquivalents at the end of the year (Refer note-14.1) 1,420.33 3,328.99




N™s

(a) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS - 7) - Statement

-
(b) Rs in Lacs
-P"l" As at As at
arewars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
CO and Cash Fquivalants comprises of :
Cash in hand 6.66 6.58
CI' jues in Hand c
Balances with banks:
-
-\ .i current accounts 230.66 3,322.06
~ Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 1,183.01 0.35
Ci_a and Cash Equivalants in Cash Flow Statement 1,420.33 3,328.99

_—
Ammendment to Ind AS 7

-

The amendments to Ind As -7 Cash Flow Statements requires the entities to provide disclosure that enable users of financial statements to evaluate

= |Particulars As at 31st Cash Flow Fair Value As on 31st
March 2022 Changes March 2023

| Borrowings- Non Current 73,812.21 23,096.83 - 96,909.05
Borrowings- Current 42,494.19 (37,028.16) - 5,466.03

Twmaccompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
A®™er our report of even date

F™ S K AGRAWAL AND CO.CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP
Chartered Accountants
™ Registration No : 306033E/E300272

3 USahed

For South City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd.
A_ .ok Kumar Sahoo
Partner
y__Y

—
0 hN‘A})
M._.nbership No- 306453 \ —

-~ Company Sccretary (M. No: ['8011)

Place: Kolkata
Duted: 6th September 2023
—-

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For South City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd.
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Director (DIN:QC 9203:(9)
For South City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd.
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Director (DIN:00QL9635)




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2023

1 Corporate Information

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprised Financial Statements of South City Projects
(Kolkata) Limited (the Company) and its Subsidiaries and Joint Venture (collectively, the Group) for
the year ended 31 March 2023.

The Holding Company is a Public limited Company established in 1995 under the Companies Act
applicable in India. The Holding Company is engaged in the business of real estate development and
also provides rental services, maintenance services which are related to the overall development of
real estate business. The Holding Company is domiciled in India and has its registered office at 770,
Anandapur, Suit 711, E. M. Bye Pass, South City Business Park, , Kolkata — 7000107,

2. Basis of Preparation of financial statements
a) Compiliance with INDAS

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group prepared its financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies
Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with  Indian Accountng Standards (“Ind-
AS”) notified under section 133 of The Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 4 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
directors on 06 September 2023,

b) Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023. Control is achieved when the Group 1s exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Company controls an investee if and only if the
Company has:

2. Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)

b.  Lxposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

¢. 'The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

The Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee it facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses
control of the subsidiary.

Consolidated  financial  statements  arc prepared using uniform  accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting
policies other than those adopted n the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group member’s financial




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2023

statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
Company’s accounting policies.

‘The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same
reporting date as that of the parent Company, ie., year ended on 31 March. When the end of the
reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for
consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as the financial
statements of the parent 1o cnable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the
subsidiary.

In term of Ind AS 110 - “Consolidated Financial Statements”, the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries are combined on a line- by- line basis by adding together the book/ fair
value of like items like assets, liabilities, income and expenditure, afrer fully eliminating intra group
balances, intra group transactions and any unrealized Profit/ Loss included therein. Profit or loss and
cach component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and 1o the non- controding 1nterests, even if this results in the non-controlling

nterests having a deficit balance.

The difference of the cost of the Group of its Investment in Subsidiaries over its proportionate share
n the cqaity of the respecuve investee companies as at the date of acquisition of stake is recognised

\

in the Financial Statement as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may be.

A change i the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. 1f the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

* Derccognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

«  Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-con trolling interests

* Derecognises the cumulative translation differenices recorded in equity

* Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

©  Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

* Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

*  Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or
retained carnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assers or liabilites. '

¢) Historical cost convention

The finaacial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been
prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain assets and liabilities which have been measured at
fair values as explained in relevant accounting principles.

\ccounting policies have been consistently appiied except where a newly issued accounting standard
s initaly adopred or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2023

statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
Company’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same
reporting date as that of the parent Company, i.e., year ended on 31 March. When the end of the
reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepates, for
consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as the financial
statements of the parent to cnable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the
subsidiary.

In term of Ind AS 110 - “Consolidated I'inancial Statements”, the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries are combined on a line- by- line basis by adding together the book/ fair
value of like items like assets, liabilities, income and expenditure, after fully eliminating intra group
balances, intra group transactions and any unrealized Profit/ Loss included therein. Profit or loss and
cach component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

The difference of the cost of the Group of its Investment in Subsidiaries over its proportionate share
in the equity of the respective investee companies as at the date of acquisition of stake is recognised
in the Financial Statement as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may be.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. 1f the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

* Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

* Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

* Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

*  Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

*  Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

* Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

* Redlassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or
retaned earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

c¢) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been
prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain assets and liabilities which have been measured at
fawr values as explained in relevant accounting principles.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly 1ssued accounting standard
is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2023

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
3.1 Current and Non-Current classification

Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle
as sixty months for ongoing projects and twelve months in case of completed projects for the
purposc of current- non-current classification of assets and liabilities. All assets and liabilities
have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013.

3.2. Foreign Currencies
Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the
primary cconomic environment in which the Group operates (‘the functional currency'). The
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Group's functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in by the Group at spot rates at the
functional currency spot rate (i.c. INR) at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.
Monetary asscts and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
curiency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions in foreign
currencies and from the translation of monetary assets and labilitics denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
anslated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (le., translation differences on items due to fair valuation is
recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

3.3. Fair Value Measurement

I'air value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement 1s based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asser or

lability

The principal or the most ad rantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The tair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best
cconomic interest.




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2023

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the usc of unobservable nputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a2 whole:

a) Level T — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

b) lLevel 2 — Valuaton techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

¢) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

FFor assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities during and at the end of
the reporting period. Although thesce estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge
of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrylng amounts of assets or liabilities in
future periods.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are carried at cost of acquisition, on

current cost basis less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if any. Cost
comprises purchase price and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working

o. Chartered;gc
o,
e




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND F OR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2023

3.7+

conditon for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the
purchase price. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.
Machinery spares which can be used only in connection with an item of fixed asset and whose
usc is expected to be irregular are capitalised and depreciated over the useful life of the principal
item of the relevant assets. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the catrying amount of
the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrylng amount of the asset) is included in the
Income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation 1s provided on Written down value method over the useful lives of property, plant
and equipment as estimated by management. Pursuant to Notification of Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013 depreciation 1s provided on prorate basis on written down value method
at the rates determined based on estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment where
applicable. However, leaschold land is depreciated over lease period on straight line basis.

Asset Useful Life
Building o L ) 60

|_7t\1211(,’ Centre Building 06

Lj.)_h'i’}i& Liquipment 15

r~ lectrical Installation & Equipment 10

| Furniture & Fitungs 10

| Vehicles . N 8 ]

| Oftice Equipment 3-5

é_ Fire Protection System 5

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment

arc reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are recognized only when future economic benefits arising out of the assets
flow to the enterprise and are amortised over their useful life of three years. Intangible assets
acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are
not capitalized and are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss for the year during which such
expenditure 1s incurred.
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3.8.

3.9.

Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development

Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development are carried at cost. Cost
includes land, related acquisition expenses, development / construction costs, borrowing costs
and other direct expenditure.

Investment Property

Management has assessed applicability of Ind AS 40 - Investment Property to the property held
to earn income from rentals. In assessing such applicability, management has considered the
ownership of assets, terms of license agreement, various services provided to the licensee etc.
The Group considers these other services as significant in addition to the charged. Based on
such assessment, the management has considered the mall property as owner occupied property
and hence classified as Property, Plant & Equipment.

3.10. Impairment of non-financial assets

‘The Group assesses at cach reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amnount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price
and 1ts value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asscet does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of asscts. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are
taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an approptiate
valuation model is used.

3.11. Inventories

Raw materials, Construction work-in-progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprise all cost of purchase including cost of
land, borrowing cost, development costs and other cost incurred in bringing them to their
present location and condition. The cost, in general, is determined using weighted average cost
method.

Contract cost incurred related to future actvity of the contract are recognised as an asset
provided it is probable that they will be recovered during the contract period. Such costs
represent the amount due from customer and are often classified as Construction work-in-
progress.

Net realizable value 1s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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3.12. Revenue and Other Income

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and it can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received/receivable net of rebate and taxes. The Group applies the revenue recognition criteria
to cach naturc of revenue transaction as set-out below:

Revenue from contracts with customers

With effect from 1 April 2018, the Company has adopted IND AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” which introduces a new five-step approach to measuring and recognising revenue
from contracts with customers. Under IND AS 115, revenue is recognised on  satisfaction of
performance obligation at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Company has elected to apply
the Cumulative catch up method in adopting IND AS 115. In accordance with the cumulative catch-up
transiton method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of
Ind AS 115 was insignificant. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has
not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures. Revenue is recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and can be reliably
measured.

Revenue from Operating Lease

Income from properties 1s accounted for on a straight line basis over the lease term. Contngent rental
income is recognised as income in the period in which it is earned. If not reccived at balance date,
revenue 1s reflected on the balance sheet as a receivable and carried at its recoverable amount.

Revenue from Maintenance Services

Revenue 15 recognised on satisfaction of performance obligation at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring services to a
customer.

Revenue from Real Estate

In case of Real Fstate Sales where Agreement of Sale is executed for under constructed properties,
revenue in respect of individual contracts is recognised when performance on the contract is considered
to be completed and it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company.

Disaggregation of Revenue

Note 24 presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31,
2023 by performance obligation. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of our revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market
and other economic factors:
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3.13. Employee Benefits
I. Defined Conttibution Plan

a. Provident Fund
Contributions in respect of all Employees are made to the Regional Provident Fund
as per the provisions of Employees’ Provident [Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions
Act, 1952 and are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when services
arc rendered by employees. The Group has no obligation other than the
contribution payable to the Regional Provident fund.

II. Defined Benefit Plan
a. Gratuity

Gratuity is a post-employment benefit and is in the nature of a defined benefit plan.
The liability recognized in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value
of the defined benefit/obligation at the balance sheet date, together with adjustments
for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined
benefit/obligation is calculated at or near the balance sheet date by an independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method. This is based on standard rates of
inflation, salary growth rate and mortality. Discount factors are determined close to
cach year-end by reference to market yields on government bonds that have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. Current Service cost and
Interest component on the Group’s defined benefit plan is included in employee
benetits expense. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the
liability are included in other comprehensive income.

III. Long Term Compensated Absences

The Group treats accumulated leave to the extent such leave are carried forward as long-
term employee  benefit for measurement purposes. Such  long-term compensated
absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method at the year-end. Current Service cost and Interest component arising out of such
valuation is included in employee benefits expense. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from
re-measurements of the liability are included in other comprehensive income. The Group
presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have
an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.
Where Group has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement
for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-current liability.

3.14. leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.
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Company as a lessce

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

[f ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option. depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses
(unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a changel in an
index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option
to purchase the underlying asset.

The Company’s lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of Land &
building (i.c., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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3.15;

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating lcases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same.

Taxes on Income
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the
respective tax jurisdictions where the Group operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred tax 1s provided using the Balance Sheet method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements at the reporting date. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
mitial recognition of an asset or liability 1n a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability 1s settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
remporary differences and losses.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends cither to settle on a net basis, or to realisc the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised 1n other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and
accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for

5. Cha
0. Lhal
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3.16.

3.17.

3.18.

the carlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of past cvent; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occutrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. The Group
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Costs include interest, amortsation of ancillary costs incurred and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs. Borrowing Costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying
assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to construction /
development of the qualifying asset up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use is
added to the cost of the assets. Capitalisation of Borrowing Costs is suspended and charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity
on the qualifying assets is interrupted. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
they occur.

Earnings per Share

Basic Liarnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
atributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the
net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all
periods presented 1s adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of
potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.
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3.19. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity Instrument of another entity.

A. Financial assets

1

1.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

ii. Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two
categories:

a.  Debt instruments at amortised cost
b. Liquity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
FVTOCI

Debt instruments at amortised cost other than derivative contracts

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions

are met:

® The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and

* Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

After inital measurement, such financial assets arc subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisiion and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss. I'his category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value other than
equity investments measured at deemed cost on first time adoption of Ind AS. Equity
instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVIPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Group decides to classify the same cither as at FVTOCI or FVTPL.
The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification 1s made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument at FVITOCL, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is
no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale
of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity.
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111.

iv.

Liquity instruments included within the VTP, category arc measured at fair value
with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and 1.oss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of
similar financial asscts) is primarily derccognised when:

¢ ‘l'he rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model

for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets

and credit rnisk exposure:

® linancial asscts that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g:;
loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on T'rade receivables.

"The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
cach reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

Lifeume ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive, discounted at the original EIR.
When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

¢ All conuactual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial
tnstrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the
remaining contractaal term of the financial instrument

¢ Cash tlows trom the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral 1o the contractual terms

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment
loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on
its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and
is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This
amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&I.. The balance sheet
presentation for various financial nstruments is described below:
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e [linancial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance,
Le., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet.
The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off
criteria, the group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying
amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to cnable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

B. Financial liabilitics
i. Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilitics are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative
financial instruments.

ii. Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include derivatives, financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss. I'inancial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes  derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.
Scparated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

inancial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss
are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS
109 are satistied. For liabilities designated as F'VIPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable
to changes 1n own credit risks are recognized in OCIL These gains/ loss are not
subscquently transferred to P&L.. FHowever, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain
or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings

After inital recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the cffective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are
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recognised 1 the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the IR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade receivables and Contract Balances

"The company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as ¢ither a
recetvable or as Contract Asset. A receivable is a right to consideration that is
unconditional upon passage of time. Revenue are recognized as related service are
performed. Revenues in excess of billings is recorded as Contract Asset and is classified
as a financial asset for the cases as right to consideration is unconditional upon passage of
time. As per assessment of contracts, the right to receive the payment is established once

the services are performed.

A contract lability is the company’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer
for which the entity has received consideration from the customer.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior
to the end of financial year. The amounts are generally unsecured. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within the
Company’s operating cycle. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the lender for a loss it incurs because the specified
borrower fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a loan
agreement. Mnancial guarantee contracts are recognised initally as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss
allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount
recognised less cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A financial liability 1s derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an extsting financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substandally different terms, or the terms of an existing lmblhly are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de- rccogmtlon
of the original lability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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3.21.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
Is an Intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Operating Segments

The Business process and Risk Management Committee of the Group, approved by the Board of
Directors and Audit Committee performs the function of allotment of resources and assessment
of performance of the Group. Considering the level of activities performed, frequency of their
meetings and level of finality of their decisions, the Group has identified that Chief Operating
Decision Maker function is being performed by the Business process and Risk Management
Commuttee. The financial information presented to the Business process and Risk Management
Committee in the context of results and for the purposes of approving the annual operating plan
is on a consolidated basis. The Group’s business acuvity falls within three reportable business
segment viz. ‘Real estate projects development’, ‘rental activities’ and ‘others - unallocated’. The
sales being operated wholly in the domestic market, the financial statement are reflective of the
information required by Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

Rounding off

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule 11T to the Act, unless otherwise stated.
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(Rs. In Lacs)

Note 4.1 - Property, Plant and Equipment (Current Year)
Gross Block at Cost Depreciation / Amortisation I Net Block
S e R ————
Particulars | Agay | Adietmem D Diposany As Asar | Miwsmentlop g | Disposals/ Upto As at Asat
ducto | Additions* | P | duc 1o o P
31-03-2022 i | Adjustments | 31-03-2023 | 31-03-2022 . year Adjustments 31-03-2023 | 31-03-2023 | 31-03-2022
| translation | | translation |
e —
Land - - 775.88 - 775.88 -0 - - - - 775.88 -
Buildings
16,960.75 0.25 - 0.02 | 16,960.48 3,595.04 051 71279 - 4,307.31 12,653.17 13,365.71
e i(025)) £ . || 16,900.4% | 3,373.0%
o 2,726.81 i - 7372 42.94 73.04 2,653.77 184.62
- 335.58 | 339.36 (401) - - 335.35 0.23
0.06. 213922 | 142477 O] 12095 0.04 1,545.64 593.58
o - 183.77 | 13633 9.54 - 146.17 37.60
Electrical Install ¢ Equip - 944.50 569.86 - 60.62 - 630.48 314.02
Furniture and Fixtures - 1,248.86 546.95 .77 112.62 - 657.80 591.06
Vehicles - - - - - - 2 “ - .
Finance I 1932 : - - 19.32 1522 - 1.28 - 16.50 2.82 4.10
Others 51.61 - 24.75 7.18 69.18 19.17 14.22 6.24 27.15 42.03 32.44
Office Equipment 353.92 (0.06) 15.72 0.38 369.21 309.70 (0.29) 18.84 0.23 328.01 41.19 44.22
TOTAL 21,793.20 (30)[  4,206.20 221.32 | 25,772.81 6,998.68 (6.62)|  1,124.87 49.45 8,067.49 | 17,705.35 14,794.58
Note 4.2 - Capital Work in Progress (Current Year)
[ Gross Block at Cost
Particulars Y T Gogiiteotons: | Aesy |
As | Additvng Capitalisation/ | As at
31-03-2022 Adjustment l
L S s S W l
Capital Work in Progress i | 11,780.97 B 212929 6,465.54 “ 5,550.71
TOTAL 11,786.97 | 229.29 6,46554 | 555071
Note 4.3 - Investment Property |
| Gross Block at Cost | Depreciation / Amortisation l Net Block
T T ] T ] o \
Particulars Asat A lement 1 o Detetions Asat Avar | et | Vorthe | Oneihens Upto Asat Asat
31-03-2022 e ! | slosa02s | stos2o2 | MW Year | (Aecumulatedupto | 5y 039093 || 31.03-2023 | 31-03-2022
translation | | | | translation the date of sale) i
S 4 1 SN ‘S | — !
| |
. | i e S I E— S U | N———
estment Property 125330 & m,I L8907 | 5,580.44 77 | ooy| 8533 - 8946 549998 5,12185
Hapet = ! 4 b, - hl _ _4389%eh ) L B | )] =
. | | | | | B | |
TOTAL | 4,253.36 | [ 1,389.47 ] - | 558944 | 4.77 ] 85.33 | - 89.46 | 5,499.98 5,121.85
Note 4.4 - Intangible Assets (Current Year)
Gross Block at Cost Depreciation / Amortisation Net Block
Rarticulare Asat M.ls:'c":m Additions Deletions Asat o M"lum-“m Forthe 1 - 1:171::... l Upto ARt Asat
31-03-2022 ° 31-03-2023 | 31-03-2022 e Yeur | (Aecumulatedupto | 5y 035003 | 31.03-2023 | 31-03-2022
translation translation the date of salc)
| Computer Software 35.76 ©.11) 0.73 g 36.37 32.99 (0.49) 3.05 0.05 35.60 0.77 2.77
) ES i S = = = - = = = = -
TOTAL 3576 .11 0.73 - | 36.37 32.99 (0.49) 3.05 0.05 35.6 0.77 2.77
Note 4.5 - Right to use of Asscts
C77 Gross Block at Cost Depreciation / Amortisation | Net Block
— T T T — T T
. djustme: "
Particulars P ‘]1‘:.1‘[::“‘ | ddiions | Disposals /| Asas As at A“"]‘:;"("“"‘ For the Disposals / Upo || Asat Asat
032022 | e Adjustments | 31-03-2023 | 31-03-2022 mm]_“‘i’ [y Adjustments | 31-03-2023 | | 31-03-2023 | 31-03-2022
ansl: | slatic |
- SR S S 717. i = -‘ = e ] E 1
————— - — T - T
| |
Land - o SS0851 ) (3.764.63) | {56 1,253.32 | 1078.02 (372.34) 32.82 | - 738.50 | 514.82 2,932.87
E LB L 1
S [ — I - I | |
TOTAL 5,508.51 (3,764.63) - | (490.56) 11,2533 1,078.02 (372.34) 32.82 | - 73850 | 514.82 2,932.87
Note 4.6 - Assets Classified as held for sale R in Lacs
|
I o Gross Block at Cost Depreciation / Amortisation T Net Block
. | — — 1 .. T —T : N T
Particulars Asat | A“.’;"‘:"I"‘]"" ‘ Additions | Disposals / As at As at M"j‘]‘:';"“" For the | Disposals / Upto | = Asat Asat
77777 ] 071:04-‘29224 ———— | Adjustments 31—93»2023 01-04-2022 | | idion year Adjustments | 31-03-2023 | 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
chold Land 892.24 892 - 892.24 - 892.24 - - 892.24
= —
[Buldwgs |
| Operating Lease - 236212 2,362.12 - 2,362.12 B 2,362.12 - - 2,362.12
Others - s = - = || - -
Plant & Equpments o - 110.74 - - 110.74
Fire Protection - - 6.31 - - 6.31
N ) o 2027 -1 - 20.27
B . ] 275 -1 - 275
‘ 35 | 035 ‘ - 0.35
- t 1 = 5 e -1
Office Fqupment ‘ - | 0.40 - - 0.40
Lz L - - - — — N — !
[ |
e . — — v
TOTAL 3,395.18 13,3958 -] 3,395.18 <[] - 3,395.18
Note 5 - Goodwill on C li
L Gross Block at Cost I - Depreciation / Amortisation [ Net Block
Particulars [ Asat | [ Additions [ Avac | For the Upto As at As at
| | aeesa02 | | 31032023 | 31-03-2022 year | 31-03-2023 | 31-03-2023 | 31-03-2022
| T
Goodwill 190078 - ' 7;,90(»,% o - - 3,900.78 3,900.78
| L - iR SN .- S S 1
o — ! L S S I : | \ o S— |
TOTAL 3,000.78 = | R | 3,90078 3,000.78
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South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

NOTE 6: NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS

(Rs. in lacs)

No. of Shares/ Units/ Nominal Value
Dcbentures per Share/ Unit | AsatMarch31, | Asat March 31,
2022-23 2021-22 202 2022
At Deemed Cost
Equited shares-Unquoted
In Others
Bengal Electric Works Ltd. # 1,500 1,500 30 -
Bengal Lamp lad. # 17,833 17,833 10 - -
Berlex India Litd. # 1,999 1,999 10 - -
Investment in Preference Shares - Ungquoted
Equited shares-Unquoted
South Cuty International School 15,300 15,300 10 1.53 1.53
1.53 1.53
Investment in Partnership Firm
South City Anmol Infra Pack LLP (Capiral) 138.00 138.00
138.00 138.00
Investment in Bond
5.15 GOI 2025 (ISIN IN0020200278)100822 20,00,00,000 1,904.00
5.63 GOI 2026 (ISIN IN0020210012) 170822 20,00,00,000 1,921.80
5.63 GOI 2026 (ISIN INGO20210012) 230822 20,00,00,000 1,3‘)23‘20
5.63 GOI 2026 (ISIN IN0020210012) 290922 10,00,00,000 950.00
5.74 GOI 2026 (ISIN IN0020210186) 19122022 20,00,00,000 1907.60
5.74 GOI 2026 (ISIN IN0020210186) 200422 10,00,00,000 %‘)67.35
574 GOI 2026 (ISIN INO020210186) 20122022 20,00,00,000 1,907.40
5.74 GOI 2026 (ISIN IN0020210186) 16032023 5,00,00,000 475.55
6.79 GOI 2027 (ISIN INO020170026) 010822 10,00,00,000 989.90
6.79 GOI 2027 (ISIN IN0020170026) 140722 5,00,00,000 #92.75
6.79 GOI 2027 (ISIN IN0020170026) 170622 5,00,00,000 488.40
6.79 GOI 2027 (ISIN IN0020170026) 190722 5,00,00,000 #491.95
6.79 GOI 2027 (ISIN IN0020170026) 200722 5,00,00,000 491.55
6.79 GOIT 2027 (ISIN IN0020170026) 220722 5,00,00,000 491.85
6.79 GOI 2027 (ISIN IN0020170026) 260722 5,00,00,000 493.15
6.79 GOI 2027 (ISIN ING020170026) 270722 5,00,00,000 493.05
6.97 GOI 2026 (ISIN INOO20160035) 160123 20,00,00,000 1,992.60
6.97 GOI 2026 (ISIN IN(I20160035) 170123 20,00,00,000 1,991.60
6.97 GOI 2026 (ISIN INOO20160035) 190123 20,00,00,000 1,991.75
7.07 HUDCO BONDS - SERIES B- INE031A07A)5 10,00,000 2,178.91 2,178.91
7.27 IRFC LTI 2027 BONDS - INEOS3F07TABS 10,00,000 198.30
25,042.67 2,178.91
At Fair Value through Profit & Loss:
In Units of Mutual Fund - Quoted**
Quoted
ROTAK CREDIT RISK FUND - GROWTT (REGULAR PLAN) tit 15,93,380 1,02,45,202 10 - 393.23
Nippon India Ligud Fund - (C3) 10 2,100.48 -
2,100.48 393.23
TOTAL 27,282.67 2,711.67
Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments 2,100.48 2,572.14
Aggregate market value of Quoted Investments 2,1‘00‘48 2,572.14
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 25,182.20 139.53
#  The shares are pending transfer in Company's name.
** Represents securities pledged with Banks and Others as secunity against Loans
NOTE 7: CURRENT INVESTMENTS (Rs. in lacs)
Face Value per Share/ Unit Asat | As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2022-23 2021-22
At Fair Value through Profit & Loss:
In Units of Mutual Fund - Quoted
Nippon India Liquied Fund-Direct Plan Groth Plan- Growth Option (LFAGG) 1,172.63 1,172.63 269.31 172.30
Investment in Govt. Bonds
8.17%0 GOI 2044 (No. of Bonds 95,000 Units) 95,000 95,000 100.00 111.44
Aggregate value of Current Investments 369.31 283.74
|
NOTE 8 : TRADE RECEIVABLES (At amortised cost)
(Rs. in lacs)
Non-current Current
As at March 31, | As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022 2023 2022
Trade Receivables
Unsecured, Considered good 14,541.59 10,438.33
TOTAL - - 14,541.59 10,438.33




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCII 31, 2023

NOTI 9: LOANS (At amortised cost)

(Rs. in lacs)

Non-current

Current

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2023 2022 - 2023 2022
Secunity Deposits - 36.88
Loans to others 308.75 1,102.30
Other Loans 200.00 400.00
TOTAL - - 508.74 1,539.17

Loans and recewvables are non- derivative financil assets which generate a fixed or varmble interest ncome for the Group. The Carrying value may be affected by changes in the credit risk of

the counterparties

NOTE 10: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (at Amortised Cost)

(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

(Rs. in lacs)

Non-current

Current

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2023 2022 2023 2022
Advances to Related Parties (Refer Note 40) 1,205.44 934.18 37.28 271.08
Interest Receivable 733.60 1,503.18 5143 114.74
Term Deposits with maturity of more than twelve months * 7,614.80 23,778.62 & -
Securiry deposits 3491 16747
TOTAL 9,588.76 26,383.46 88.71 385.82

NOTE 11: CURRENT TAX ASSETS / (LIABILITIES) - NET

* Pledge with bank as sccunty against loan taken by the subsidiare- Indocean Developers Pyt Lid

(Rs. in lacs)

Non-current

Current

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

As at Maich 31,

2023 2022 2023 2022
Current Tax Assets / (Luabilities) - Net 1,797.48 2,767.29
TOTAL - - 1,797.48 2,767.29
NOTL 12: OTHER ASSETS
(Rs. in lacs;

Non-current

Current

As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022 2023 2022
Advances other than capital advances

Jomt Development Agreement 4,942.50 5,071.39 -

Advances for Projects, Expenses etc. 7 588.75 995.58
Advance tax {net of Provision for tax) - - 9.37 0.16
Prepaid expenses 148.62 203.38 235.54 230.84
Balances with statutory / government authorities 1,732.66 1,051.40
Advance given to Suppliers and Contractors 991.35 1,516.84
Other Advances 160.90 205.34

TOTAL 5,091.12 5,274.77 3,718.57 4,000.15
NOTE 13: INVENTORIES
(Valued at lower of Costand Net Reahsable Value)
s (Rs. in lacs)
Current
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Raw matenals and Consumables 365.67 362.98
Constructon Work —m - progress |
Land 2“)‘()&‘)3 3,595.52
L Others 7,396.31 11479.16
Fiished Goods 40,477.59 53,460.16
TOTAL 51,408.50 68,897.83




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

NOTE 14: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Rs. in lacs)

Non-current

Current

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2023 2022 2023 2022

14.1 Cash and cash cquivalents*
Balances wath banks :

On current accounts - 230.66 3,322.06

Deposits with oryginal maturity of less than three months - - 1,183.01 0.35

“ash on hand 6.66 6.58
TOTAL A) - - 1,420.33 3,328.99
14.2 Other bank balances
Balances with banks :
L'erm Deposits with maturity of more than three months but less than . . 1,905.09 38.04
twelve months I
‘TOTAL (B) - - 1,905.09 38.04
TOTAL (A+B) - - 3,325.42 3,367.03

“The above are considered as Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Statement of Cash flows

#* Represents Fixed Deposits pledged with banks as security agamst loans

NOTE 15: SHHARE CAPITAL

(Rs. in lacs)

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2023 2022

Authorized capital
50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach 500.00 500.00
(P.Y50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)

TOTAL 500.00 500.00
Issucd, subscribed and paid-up capital ‘
15,00.700 quuy Shares of Rs. 10 each fully pad up m cash 450.07 450.07
(Y 45,00,700 Equaty Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up i cash)

TOTAL 450.07 450.07

a. Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity Shares

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
At the begmning of the year 45,00,700 450.07 45,00,700 450.07
Issued durmg the Year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 45,00,700 450.07 45,00,700 450.07

b. Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Group has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs 10 each. Holder of each FEquity Share is entitled to one vote per share. The Group declares and pays dividends in Indian
rupees. In the event of hiquidation of the Group, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receve remaining assets of the Group, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The

distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

¢. Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% c¢quity shares of the Group

Name of Sharcholders

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

|

No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding
Shrachn Deveiopers Py Lad 1,350,071 10,00% 450,071 10.00%
Park Chambers Lud 125,105 9.45% -LZ‘S,IUS 9.45%
Merlin Projects Lud 3,90,955 8.69% 3,90,955 8.69%
Jugal Kishore Khetawat 3,860,331 8.58% 3,86,334 8.58%
Jugal Kishore Khemwar - Trustee of Khetawat Fanuly Welfare Trust 3.20,335 7.25% 3,26,335 7.25%
Vinayak Dealers (1) Lid 292,000 6.49% 2,92,000 6.49%
Pan Emanu Cosmed Ltd 254,225 5.65% 2,54,225 5.65%

. . : : : |
\s per records of the Group, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations recerved from sharcholders regarding beneficial mterest, the above shareholding represents

both legal and beneticil ownership of shares

Shareholding of Promoter

Name of Sharcholders

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Shrt Rajendra Kumar Bachhawat

No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding
Shr1 Radhe Shyam Agarwal 27111 0.60% 27111 | 0.60%
Shri Radhe Shyam Goenka 3289 0.07% 3289 | 0.07%
Shri Jugal Kishore Khetawat 386334 8.58"% 386334 8.58%
Shn Pradeep Kumar Surcka 51335 1.14% 51335 1.14%
Shrt Sushil Kumar Mohta 108000 2.40% 182000 4.04%
148000 3.29% 148000 3.29%




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

NOTE 16 : OTHER EQUITY

C. Other Comprehensive Income - FVITOCI reserve (net of tax)

(13,383.52)

(Rs. in lacs,
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Reserves & Surplus
A. Capual reserve -
A. Sceurities premium account (as per the last financual statements) 660.00 660.00
|
B. General reserve (as per the last financial statements) 20,000.00 20,000.00
13,736.92 15,265.25

(26,129.75)

Closing Balance

D. Retamed Earnngs (movements given below?
Total - Other equity 21,013.40 9,795.50
Movement in Retained Earnings
(Rs. in lacs)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
|
Opening Balance (26,129.75) 2,026.20
Add: Profut for the year 12,746.24 (28,155.95)
(13,383.52) (26,129.75

Capital Reserve- The acquisition of an additional ownerslup interest in a subsidry without a change of control is accounted for as an equity transaction i accordance with Ind AS 110. Any

excess or deficit of fair value of consideration paid over the carrying amount of the non-controlling mterests 1s recognised in equity of the parent in transactions| where the non-controlling

interests are acquired or sold without loss of control. The Group has clected to recogmse this effect in the capital reserve.

Securities Premium Account- Premium received on equity shares issued are recognised m the securities premium account.

General Reserve - Under the erstwhile Indian Companies Act 1950, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net mcome at a specified percentage in accordance with
applicable regulations, to ensure thataf a dividend distribution i a given year s more than 10% of the paid capital of the Group tor that year, the total dividend distribution is less than the total

distributable results for that year. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2053, the requirement 10 mandatonly transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has

been wathdraws
Retained Earnings - Retained carnings includes surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss, Ind-AS related adjustments as on the date of transiion, remeasurement gas/ losses on defined

benefit obhgatons

FVTOCI Reserve - Net gam/ (loss) on remeasurement of defined benefit labihty comprisig of actural gam and losses and return on plan assets (excluding interest income).

NOTE 17 : BORROWINGS

(Rs. in lacs
Non-current
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022

Term loans

Frrom banks (Refer note 17.1) ‘)(),‘)‘0‘),()5 73,812.21

Long Term Maturities of Finance Lease Obligations (Refer note 17.1) |- 0.35
Unsecured
Term loans

From related parnes 142.78 70.59

Compound financial Instruments
TOTAL 97,051.83 73,883.16




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited
17.1 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Terms & Conditions

| Current Portion
Bank from whom

. . | of Loan as on
Loan is availed | 31.03.2023

| inlas
(8).Lerm Lodns From Banks

Kotak Bank 1

ICICI Bank 271.00

[ICICI Bank

}7, B

2,648.3+4

|Standard Chartered

i 2,366.58
|Bank 2bh2

Standard Chartered

| Bank, Colombo

Standard Chartered
Bank, Singapur

|
| SEE————
[

Standard Chartered
Bank, Colombo

|Standard Chartered
'Bank, Colombo

|

b

1

|

|

Standard Chartered
Bank, Singapore

|

TOTAL (a) 5,285.92

E}) L;our;s “From NBFC

Axis Finance

@ Ir:inial’tlcéii:l:'.lsc Obligations
|HDFC Bank

Toyota I'inancial

ITOTAL (b) -
l:lloxom Financial 1.09
"TOTAL (b) 5.07

Current
Portion of
Loan as on
31.03.2022

in Lacs

2,832.00

2,457.55

2,033.41

8,720.08

15,544.48

1
31,999.70 |

Non Current
Portion of
Loan as on

Non Current
Portion of
Loan as on

Interest

31.03.2023 | 31.03.2022
) |
inLacs  inlacs |
l !
o 465550 lGM MCLR
‘ ‘ 0.5 %
| i,
| \
|
|
3,643.31 313986 | Y MR |

Spread

1Y MCILR

36,163.25 .
. Spread

33,514.91

1Y MCLR
Spread

(5

730,62 29,921.88

Imonth
LIBOR

annum

S ,!

Imonth

5,055.82

9,690.33

17,274.06

96,909.05 |

73,81221 |
945"
T7.50%,
526
17.28 7.17

+

Installment Amount |

(p-a. basis) |
\

|

in Lacs

Security Provided T avail Loan

T 71()727[:(]&?1’;01“111)7 . [1)7(;&1:171717717’]7051‘71:7 13th floor of

mstallment

installment

installment of Rs. 68.43
(inclusive of interest

_amount)

36 structured monthly

128 structured monthly

t 128 structured monthly

mstallment

| |
| +1.25 % per |

LIBOR +1.4|

% perannum |

|
Plot No. XI-1, Block EP, Sector V, Salt Lake, Kolkata - 700 091.

T‘ouih City "Pinnacle" situated at

1) An exclusive charge on leasehold pr

| & structure, both present & future.

[2) An exclusive charge by way of hyp

| project.

13) An exclusive charge on project [

1) First charge on the property togeth

both present & future.

2) First charge over the receivables from the property.

P)Lirx‘trclmrgc on Escrow & DSR Acc

Tperry together with all buildings

othecation on receivables of the

ow & DSR Account.
er with all buildings & structure,

unt of the borrower.

1) First pari passu charge by way

|property, to be shared only with the S

from Axis Bank Ltd.

|
12) Iirst pari passu charge over the cash flows of the Mall.

US Dollar term Loan from Stand

amounting to USD 11.5 million, at th

[Y per annum secured by guarantee

|company South city projects (Kolkata) Ltd and its parent company AA

f FEquitable Mortgage over the
BL.C/TL facilities already availed

rd Chartered Bank, Colombo
rate of 1 month LIBOR+1.25
provided by its ultimate parent

Jlnfr;\propcnics Pyt .Ltd.

‘US Dollar term Loan from Standard Chartered Bank, Singapore

amounting to USD 20.5 million, at t

Iper annum  sccured by guarantee
|

b

) 1c0mp;my South city projects (Kolkata)

¢ rate 1month LIBOR +1.4 %
rovided by its ultimate parent

Ltd.

"The Company has obtained a term
Bank, Colombo amounting to USD 6

|per annum.The loan is fully repayabl

‘docs not have any charge/mortgage
ol the company.

"The Company has obtained a term

|Bank, Singapore amounting to USD

|SOFR + 3% per annum.The loan is fi

The Bank does not have any
assets/receivables of the company.

The Company has obtained a term

[Bank, Colombo amounting to USD

ISOFR+2.9%p.a+ CAF 0.1% per ann

November 2025. The Bank does not

| project assets/receivables of the comy

11 structured quarterly

installment within
Jun'2023

(44
0.13

loan from Standard Chartered
million at the rate of SOFR + 3%

by November 2025. The Bank
on the project assets/receivables

loan from Standard Chartered
20.5 million at the rate of term
lly repayable by November 2025.
arge/mortgage on the project

11.5 million at the rate of Term
um.The loan is fully repayable by
have any charge/mortgage on the

pany. 00

1) Entire land at mesuring 2.5 ecre alg

having salable area

2) First & exclusive charge of hypot‘hecation of the receivable / cash
flow from Business Park forming part of security.

3) First & exclusive charge on escow

| Hypothecation of Creta & Polo Vehi
Iypothecation of Fitios Vehicle,

ng with constructie Business Park
of 281589 sq.ft.

/c of the project.

'Hypothecation of Ftios Vehicle.




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
NOTE 18 : TRADE PAYABLES
(Rs. in lacs
Current
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Trade Payables :
- Total outstanding dues of Micro & Small Enterprises (Sce Note 38) - 1.37
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro & Small Enterprises 7,945.58 8,849.15
‘Total Trade Payables 7,945.58 8,850.51

NOTE 19: PROVISION

(Rs. in lacs]

Non-current

|_Current

As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022 2023 T2022

Provision for employee benefits
Graunty (Refer Note 37) 170.13 189.96 3413 33.66
lLeave encashment (Refer Note 37} 95.00 87.81 18.18 18.39
Provision for customer compensation 469.90
‘Total 265.20 277.18 52.31 521.95
NOTE 20: BORROWINGS (Rs. in lacs

Current

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2023 2022
Secured
Bank Overdraft 180.10 25,085.53
Curtent matunties of long-term bortowings 5,285.92 7,735.14
Current maturities of finance lease obligations 3.10
Term Loan from Bank / Loan from NBFC 9,670.42
Unsecured
I'rom Related Parues and Bodies Corporates 482.51 6,128.49
From Directors 65.00 1,000.00
TOTAL 6,013.54 49,622.68
NOTE 21: OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
o (Rs. in lacs

Non-current

Current

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2023 2022 2023 2022
Sccunty deposits recerved - - 416.95 414.71
Retention 838.21 807.41 880.21 839.52
Other Fmaneal Labihities 0.10 0.40 2,741.82 3.890.80
Interestacerued and due on borrowings 35.88
Interest accrued and not due on borrowings 25.82
\dvance [rom Related party 317.43
\mount payable to Contractors - 194.30 95.76
TOTAL 838.61 807.80 4,750.72 5,302.50
NOTE 22: OTHER LIABILITIES
(Rs. in lacs

Non-current

Current

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2023 2022 2023 2022
Security Deposit Recewved T.370.54 7,449.02 169.92 168.22
Advance from Customer 1,865.34 1,532.36
Statutory dues - 1,932.26 1,810.86
Other Current Labilines 2:4.52 13.35 1‘3‘3&5() 7,695.03
TOTAL 7,395.06 7,462.37 5,306.08 11,206.46




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCIT 31, 2023

NOTE 23: DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / (LIABILITIES)

(Rs. in lacs)

NON - CURRENT
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Deferred Tax Assets
Tax wmpact due to difference between tax depreciation and book deprecation 47.62 11.16
Provision for Grannty #1.72 43.32
Provision for Leave Encashment 28.53 26.84
Others through OC1 5.94 4.62
Municipal Tax 366.43 306.74
490.24 392.68
Deferred tax Liabilities
Fair valuation of Mutual Funds 2.70 5.00
2.70 5.00
Net Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liabilitics) 487.54 387.67
Disclosed as follows:
Gross Deferred Tax Assets 487.52 387.67
Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities 557.64 483.06
NOTE 24 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(Rs. in lacs)
2022-23 2021-22
Operating Revenue
Sale of Products
Revenue from Land & Constructed Properues 25,5454 93,022.61
Revenue 2 Sale of LPG Gas 21.99 542
Sale of Services
Rental Income 16,870.59 12,788.75
Mamtenance Services 2,782.69 2,804.15
Other Operating Revenue
Others 276.29 439.73
TOTAL 45,497.00 1,09,060.67
NOTE 25: OTIHER INCOME
(Rs. in lacs
2022-23 2021-22
Interest mecome 1,275.35 1,671.29
Profit on sale of Mutual Fund 22.62
Recovery of Rates and rases - 56.34
Net Gam on Sale of Investments 55.02 51.04
Net foreign exchange gain 2,900.55 4,547.12
Profit on disposal of Fixed asset (CAR) 7,932.79 3.29
Interest- Others 189.32 713
Far value change of investnents measured at FYTPL 2231 24.25
Sundry Balances Wrtten Back 193.57 15.14
Reversal of | Credit Loss 407.08
mpps - 38.89
Miscellancous Income 325.69 449.060
Total 12,894.60 7,293.86
NOTE 26 : CONSTRUCTION COSTS
(Rs. in lacs)
2022-23 2021-22
Salaries, Wages & Bonus 60.65 103.00
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 2.67 3.97
Staft Welfare Fxpenses 0.37 0.28
Power & Iuel 32.76 17.25
Repairs
Others 1.59 1.99
Insurance 227 5.12
Rates & Taxes 0.47 0.88
land 16.82 0.18
Materals Consumed 298.58 372.76
Constraction Expenses 1,024.98 9,394.17
Other Operaung Lxpenses 27.89 147.76
Consultancy & Reramership Charges 25.60 10.77
Hevennc Share (ot Developracat Cost ) 216739
TOTAL 1,494.65 12,225.53




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCII 31, 2023

NOTE 27 : (Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (Rs. in lacs)
2022-23 2021-22
Inventories at the end of the year:
Fuushed Goads 5,426.31 9,883.88
Construction work i Progress
Land 2,968.93 3,595.52
Others 7,396.31 60,703.20
4,066.03 =

Add: Capualised
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished Goods

Constructuon work mn Progress

(9,883.88)

(11,677.77)

(2,007.15)

Land (3,595.52)
Others (11,479.16) (31,984.02)
Less: Adjustment due to transhnon - (21,013.86)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 5,100.99 (7,499.81)
NOTE 28 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Rs. in lacs)
2022-23 2021-22
Salaries, Wages and Bonus §12.00 491.62
Contribution to Provident and Others Funds (Refer Note 37) 31.62 30.11
Staff Welfare Expenses 33.50 7.77
TOTAL 877.12 529.49
NOTE 29: DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION (Rs. in lacs)
2022-23 2021-22
Deprecation on Tangible assets (Note 1.1) 1,124.86 1,255.84
Deprecaation on Investment Property (Note 4.2) 85.33 1.98
Amortsation of Intangible Assets (Note 4.4) 3.05 444
Total 1,213.24 1,262.26
NOTE 30.1: COST OF SALES (Rs. in lacs)
I 2022-23 2021-22
Cost ol Sales 7,979.23 77,055.74
Total 7,979.23 77,055.74
NOTE 30.2: FINANCE COSTS (Rs. in lacs)
| 2022-23 2021-22
Interest expenses 7,895.79 10,148.46
Net Foreygn Exchange Loss 4,614.86 42,024.14
Other Borrowmg Costs 676.94
Total 13,187.58 56,427.78
NOTE 31: OTHER EXPENSES (Rs. in lacs)
2022-23 2021-22
Power & Hucl 1,177.05 864.81
Repairs
Bulding 37.85 42.56
Others 48.65 129.16
\Mamtenance 498.16 439.74
House Keeping Charges 395.67 326.40
Security Cha 265.64 303.42
Transportation xpenses 22.38 0.07
Landscappmy, & Gardemng, xpenses 9.70 5.98
Insurance 267.75 98.42
Rates & Taxes 1,229.00 1,594.37
Legal & Profession Charges 542.24 426.17
Director’s Remuneraton 3.50 2.60
CSR Expenses (Refer Note 31.2) 41.55 10.20
Materal Consumed 9.11 -
Share of Loss as parmer in South Caty Anmol Infra Pack LLP 141.94 358.03
Electrical Expenses and others 98.74 11.80
Loss on sales of Fixed Assest 18.20
Provision for doubtful advances 6,601.99 -
Discount allowed 16.83 89.00
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,154.61 2,603.00
Total 13,580.56 7,305.79




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
Note 31.1- Auditor's Remuneration (Rs. in lacs)
2022-23 2021-22
As Auditor:
Audit fee 1499 18.23
Tax Audt fee 1.30 0.55
Other Matters 1.00 0.35
Total 17.29 19.13
Note 31.2- Details of CSR Expenditure
| (Rs. in lacs)
2022-23 2021-22
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year 40.54 74.73
40.54 74.73
b) Amount spent during the year:
Constructon/ acquisition of an asset -
Purposes other than above 41.55 10.26
N 64.47

Net Unspent
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South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

32 Basis for calculation of Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share is as under:

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to Equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average

number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to Equity holders of the Parent Company by the Weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive

potential equity shares into equity shares.

R in Lakhs
2022-23 2021-22
Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent for basic earnings 12,746.24 (28,155.95)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 45,00,700 45,00,700
Nominal value of equity per share (Rs.) 10 10
Earnings per Share - Basic & Diluted (Rs.) 283.21 (625.59)
33 Commitment and Contingencies

a. Commitments

R in Lakhs

As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account(net of capital advance) 1,042.30 499.71
b. Contingent liabilities

R in Lakhs

. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Outstanding Bank guarantees and letters of credit - =
Disputed demands
(a) Employees State Insurance Demands (Net of Advances) 9.62 9.62
(b) Service Tax 1,327.49 1,327.49
(c) Income Tax -
Total 1,337.11 1,337.11
34 Leases

Operating lease — Group as lessor
The Parent Company has given Mall premises and IT Park on operating lease to lessee. The Company enters into 3 - 15 years cancellable lease
agreements. Minimum lease payments receivable in respect of these leases for non-cancellable period are as follows-

R in Lakhs
Minimum Lease Payments As at As at

March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

Within one year 831.41 1,424.86
After one year but not more than five years 371.54 1,202.95
Total Minimum Lease Payments 1,202.95 2,627.82

+ KolkAts *
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South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 35.1 - Financial Assets
(Rs. in lacs)

As at As at
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Financial Assets - Non Current
At Amortised Cost
(a) Other financial assets 9,588.76 26,383.46
9,588.76 26,383.46
At I'air Value through profit or loss
Investments 2,100.48 393.23
Total Non Current Financial Assets (a) 11,689.24 26,776.68
Financial Assets - Current
At Amortised cost
(a) Trade Receivables 14,541.59 10,438.33
(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,420.33 3,328.99
(¢) Bank Balances other than (b) above 1,905.09 38.04
(d) Loans 508.74 1,539.17
(¢) Other Financial Assets 88.71 385.82
18,464.46 15,730.35
At air Value through profit or loss
Investments 369.31 283.74
Total Current Financial Assets (b) 18,833.77 16,014.09
Total Financial Assets (a + b) 30,523.01 42,790.76
Note 35.2 - Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities - Non Current
At Amortised Cost
(a) Borrowings 97,051.83 73,883.16
(b) Other Financial Liabilities 838.61 807.80
Total Non Current Financial Liabilities (a) 97,890.44 74,690.96
Financial Liabilities - Current
At Amortised Cost
(a) Borrowings 6,013.54 49,622.68
(b) Trade payables 7,945.58 8,850.51
(c) Other Financial Liabilities 4,750.72 5,302.50
Total Current Financial Liabilities (b) 18,709.84 63,775.69
Total Financial Liabilities (a + b) 1,16,600.28 1,38,466.65




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 36 - Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s Consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of

assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements, Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based
its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Financial Statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, estimates and assumptions, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial Statements.

Defined Employer Benefit plans

The cost and the present value of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment leave encashment benefit are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future. These include
the determination of appropriate discount rate, estimating future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at

cach reporting date. For further details refer Note 37.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments and guarantees

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCE model. The inputs to these models are taken | from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
sumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair

considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in 2
value of financial instruments.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and cquipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Group. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is
derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and
set is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each

residual values of Group's assets are determined by management at the time the
financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their

life, such as changes in technology.

Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with the applicable Ind AS. A provision is
recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows. The Group has significant capital commitments in relation to various capital projects
which are not recognized on the balance sheet.

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Group. Guarantees are also provided
There are certain obligations which management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances,

in the normal course of busine
are not probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in the
ssurance regarding the final outcome of the legal

notes but are not reflected as liabilities in the financial statements. Although there can be no
proceedings in which the Group involved, it is not expected that such contingencies will have a material effect on its financial position or

profitability.

Classification of leases

The Group enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of the leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is
based on an assessment of several factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option
to purchase and estmated certainty of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset’s economic life, proportion of present value

of minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset.




South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR 'THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

37 Employee Benefit Obligation
(a) Defined Benefit Plan

"The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expenses recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss and OCI amounts recognized in

the balance sheet:

(Rs. in lacs)

Gratuity Unfunded

Leave Encashment Unfunded

. As at As at As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at year beginning 283.91 316.19 108.25 125.26
Current Service Cost 16.82 19.84 16.90 10.28
Interest Cost 18.19 14.90 7.54 8.39
Remeasurements (gains)/losses

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions - - -

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.70) (13.00) (0.43) (3.62)

Actuarial {(gains)/losses arising from changes in experience adjustments 6.25 18.86 17.96 13.99
Benefits Paid (57.12) (72.87) (34.90) (46.06)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at year end 267.33 283.91 115.32 108.25

Gratuity Unfunded

Leave Encashment Unfunded

Attrition Rates, based on age

As at As at As at As at
Particulurs March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Amounts Recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefir obligation at the year end 267.33 28391 115.32 108.25
Fair Value of the Plan Assets at the year end ‘ -
Liability / (Assct) Recognised in the Balance Sheet 267.33 283.91 115.32 108.25
Gratuity Unfunded Leave Encashment Unfunded
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22
Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Current Service Cost 16.82 19.84 16.90 10.28
Remeasurements (or Acturial (gains)/losses) arising from :
- Changes in financial assumptions -0.70 -13.00 (0.43) -3.62
- Experience varience (Le. Actual experience vs assumptions) 6.25 18.86 17.96 13.99
Net Interest Cost/(Income) 18.19 14.90 7.54 8.39
Net Cost Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 40.55 40.59 41.97 29.05
Expense recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income:
Remeasurements (gains)/losses 555 5.85 0.00 0.00
Net Cost Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 5.55 5.85 0.00 0.00
(i) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Group's plans are shown below
As at As at As at As at
Significant Actuarial Assumptions March 31, 2023 | March 31,2022 | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Financial Assumption
Discount rate 7.15% 7.10% 7.15% 7.10%
Salary Growih Rate (") o 8% 8% 8% 8%
Demographic Assumptions :
Normal Retirement Age (yrs.) 58 58 58 58
Mortality Rate (Yo of IALM 06-08) 100%0 100%% 100% 100%
2% 2% 2% 2%

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply

and demand in the employment market.

Assumputions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the published statisties by the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

The discount rate is based on the government securities yield.

The Group assesses these assumptions with its projected long: term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards.

s



(ii) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below

Gratuity
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Discount Rate (- / + 1%) 197.07 171.26 203.93 174.84
% change compared to base due to sensitivity » 750% -6.57% 8.26% -7.18%
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 19%) 17599 | 191.51 179.99 197.35
" change compared 1o base duce to seasitivity 3.99% | 447% -4.45% 4.76%
Attrition Rate (- / + 50%) 18146 | 18502 | 185.70 190.82
% change compared to base due to sensitivity -1.01% 0.93% -1.42% 1.30%
Mortality Rate (- / + 10%) 182.91 183.70 187.90 188.85
% change compared to base due to sensitivity -0.22% 0.21% -0.25% 0.25%

Leave Encashment
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022

~ Decrease | Increase Decrease Increase

Discount Rate (- / + 1"%) L1 10261 115.63 98.00
"o change compared to base duc to sensitivity | 7.96% -6.97% 8.91% -1.70%
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%) [ 102.00 119.64 97.42 116.15
"o change compared to base duc to sensitivity -7.53% 8.47% -8.24% 9.40%
Attrition Rate (- / + 50%) 110.79 109.85 102.57 105.69
% change compared to base due to sensitivity 0.45% -0.40% -3.39% -0.46%
Mortality Rate (- / + 10%) 110.38 110.21 106.27 106.09
% change compared to base due to sensitivity 0.08% -0.08% 0.09% -0.08%

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit obligation by one
) & I f y. ¥arying 3
percentage, keeping all other actuarial assumptions constant. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change

compared to the prior period

(iii) Risk Exposure

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary overtime. Thus, the Group is exposed
to various risks in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as follows:

Interest Rate risk : The plan exposes the Group to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing
the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements).

Liquidity Risk : This is the risk that the Group is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non-availability of enough.cash / cash

cquivalent to meet the labilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in tme.

Salary Escalation Risk : ‘The present value of the defined benefit plan s caleulated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future.
Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have
a bearing on the plan's hability

Demographic Risk : The Group has used certain mortality and attriton assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Group is exposed to the risk of actual
CXPL‘I"XL‘"CC lllrl\lﬂg out to be worse C()n)pﬂrcd to fhc ﬂ,\'Sulnpli()ﬂ

Regulatory Risk : Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act , 1972(as amended from time to time). There is a
nsk of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts (¢.g. Increase in the maximum limit on gratuity of Rs. 20,00,000).

38 There are Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Group owes dues which are outstanding for more than 45 days during the year. This
information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 as been determined to the extent such

parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the group.

(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
i) the Principal amount remaining unpaid to supplicr as at the end of each

NIL 1.37
accounting year
11) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 along with
amount of the pavment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during NI NIL
the each accounting vear
1) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond appointed day during the year) but NIL NIL
without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act 2006
iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each s T
accounting year: and
v) the amount of further interest remamning duc and payable in the succeeding
year until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small

NIL NIL
enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

39 Fair Value Hicrarchy

&

The table shown below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
from prices)

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs)

The different levels have been defined below:-
Level 1: Quoted Prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

are observable for the asset or liability, cither dircetly

(i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.c., derived

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value at 31 March 2023 (Rs. in lacs)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Investment at FVTPL
In Quoted Units of Mutual Fund 2,100.48 2,100.48
In Quoted Equity Shares 2 -
In Quoted Shares through PMS Pool Account ~ =
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value at 31 March 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Investment at FVIPL
In Quoted Units of Mutual FFund 393.23 393.23

In Quoted Equity Shares

In Quoted Shares through PMS Pool Account

(b)

©

Financial instruments at ammortized cost

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at

since the Group does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly

During the year there has been no transfer from one level to another

amortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values
different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.
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South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
RELATED PARTIES

(a) Particulars of Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
Parent and Subsidiary Companies:

Name of related parties Nature of relationship % of Holding
South City International School Subsidiary 51.00%
Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Joint Venture of the Group
Name of related parties Nature of relationship % of Holding

Kolkata Metropolitan South City Development Ltd. Joint Venture of the Company 49.97%

Key Management Personnel

Name of related parties Nature of relationship
Shri Pradeep Kumar Sureka Non - Executive Director
Shri Rajendra Kumar Bachhawat Non - Fxecutive Director
Shri Ravi Todi Non - Executive Director
Shri Sushil Kumar Mohta Non - Executive Director
Shri Jugal Kishore Khetawat Non - Executive Director
Shri Sentu Sardar Non - Executive Director (Since 07.08.2021)
Dr. Nitesh Kumar Gupta Non - Executive Director
Shri Hari Mohan Marda Independent Director
Shri Shrish Tapuriah Independent Director
Shri Parimal Ajmera Company Secretary

Shri Man Mohan Bagree Vice President

Entities where Key Management Personnel & their relatives have significant influence with whom transactions have taken
place during the year

South City Belair Property Management Private Ltd.
Khetawat Family Welfare Trust

Khetawar Properties Ltd.

South City Anmol Infra Park [.1.P

Groove Traders Pvt. Lid.

Merlin Projects Ltd.

Anmol Agrofarm LLP

Anumati Consultancy & Services (P) Ltd.

Delta Nirman LLP

Jyotim Constructions LLP

Monarch Shelter Pvt.].td.
S.K.G.Land Developers LLP
Shangrila Commercial Co LLP

A A Synergy DMCC
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South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

41 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial liabilitics, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The
main purposc of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Group’s principal financial
assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive dircetly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. ‘The Group’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Group’s senior
management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Group. The
financial risk committee provides assurance to the Group’s senior management that the Group’s financial risk activides are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk
management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Group’s policy that no trading in

derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

A. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Group.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and financial assets measured at amortised cost.

The group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. Credit risk related
to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying bank deposits. Other financial assets measured at
amortized cost includes security deposits, Loans given and others. Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability of
such amounts continuously, while at the same time internal control system in place ensure the amounts are within defined limits.

a) Credit Risk Management

L. Credit Risk Rating

The Group assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following catcgories arrived on the basis of assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the
class of financial assets.

A. Low Credit Risk

B. Moderate Credit risk

C. High credit risk

Asset Group Description

e e Cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, investments and
Low Credit Risk - .
other financial assets

Moderate Credit Risk Current T'rade receivables and Secured loans

High Credit Risk Non Trade receivables and Unsecured loans

*Based on business environment in which the Group operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counterparty fails to make payments within the
agreed time period as per contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and considering differences between current and
historical cconomic conditions.

Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring bankruptey or a litigation decided against the Group. The
Group continues to engage with parties whose balances are written off and attempts to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognized in statement of profit

and loss.

(Rs. in lacs)

Credit Rating Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Low Credit Risk l(“;;h]?‘:i\;:ll]l ij::[\:\lcnls, other bank balances, investments and 40,654.89 3313171
Moderate Credit Risk Current T'rade recetvables and Secured loans 14,541.59 10,475.21
High Credit Risk Non Current Trade receivables and Unsecured loans 508.74 1,502.30

B. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
they are due.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group takes into

account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Maturities of Financial Liabilities

The table below analyse the Group's Financial Liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities

March 31, 2023

(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars Less than 1year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 6,013.54 64,020.55 33,031.28 1,03,065.37
Trade Payable 7,945.58 - - 7,945.58
Security deposits 416.95 - - 416.95
Other Financial Liabilities 4,750.72 838.61 - 5,589.33
March 31, 2022

Particulars Less than 1year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 49,622.68 40,851.88 33,031.28 1,23,505.84
‘T'rade Payable 8,850.51 - - 8,850.51
Sccurity deposits 414.71 - - 414.71
Other Financial Liabilities 5,302.50 807.80 - 6,110.30

C. Market Risk
a. Interest Rate Risk

The Group has taken debt to finance its working capital , which exposes it to interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to interest

rate risk.

Interest Rate Risk Lxposure

Particulars

31-Mar-23

31-Mar-22

Variable Rate Borrowing

97,089.15

1,08,568.51

Fixed Rate Borrowing

5,976.22

14,937.33

Interest rate sensitivity

Profit or loss and equity is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Interest Sensitivity*

Interest Rates increase by 100 basis points (970.89) (1,085.69)
Interest Rates decrease by 100 basis points 970.89 1,085.69
*Holding all other variables constant

Price Risk Sensitivity

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Price Risk Sensitivity*

Price increase by 500 basis points 105.02 19.66
Price decrease by 500 basis points (105.02) (19.66)

*Holding all other variables constant
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42 Capital management
For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, convertible preference shares, securities premium and all
other equity reserves attributable to the cquity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Group’s Capital Management is to maximise the

sharcholder value.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support
its business and provide adequate return to sharcholders through continuing growth and maximise the sharcholders value . The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from previous yearThe Group sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term
operating plans which include capital and other strategic investments. The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity internal fund
generation and borrowed funds.. The Group’s policy is to use short term and longterm borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements. The
Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity ratio. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. Net
debt are long term and short term debts as reduced by cash and cash equivalents (including restricted cash and cash equivalents). Equity comprises
share capital and free reserves (total reserves excluding OCI). The following table summarizes the capital of the Group:

(Rs. in lacs)

As at As at

March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Borrowings 1,03,065.37 1,23,505.84
Trade payables 7,945.58 8,850.51
Other Financial Liabilities 5,589.33 6,110.30
Less: Cash and Cash Lquivalents 1,420.33 3,328.99
Less: Bank Balances Other than Cash and Cash Fquivalents 1,905.09 38.04
Net debt 1,13,274.86 1,35,099.62
Total capital 7,726.55 -5,019.68
Capital and net debt 1,21,001.41 1,30,079.94

Gearing ratio 94% 104%
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In View of continued sluggish real estate market condition on step down subsidiary viz Indocean Developrs Private
Limited ("IDPL"), the Company has waived off interest for the FY 2022-23 on the loan given to subsidiary viz AA
Infra Properties Private Limited ("AAIPL") in as much as the said loan was consequently given by AAIPL to IDPL.
Based on the projected cashflow of IDPL as certifed by Independent Valuer and Management, the loan is good and
thus need not impaired /provided for.

In View of continued sluggish real estate market condition on step down subsidiary viz AA Infra (Middle East)
Limited ("AAIMEL"), the Company has waived off interest for the FY 2022-23 on the loan given to subsidiary viz AA
Infra Properties Private Limited ("AAIPL") in as much as the said loan was consequently given by AAIPL to
AAIMEL. Based on the valuation of lLand held by stepdown subsidiary by independent valuer, the loan is

impaired/provided for.

The company has waived off the guarantee commission for the corporate guarantee in refernce to Ind AS-109, given
against the loan taken by step down subsidiary viz Indocean Developrs Private Limited ("IDPL") in view of the
continued sluggish real estate market condition.

Scheme of Arrangement:

The Company is in the process of implementation of an internal restructuring through a Scheme of Arrangement
(“Scheme”) filed with the National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (“NCLT”). The Scheme entails merger of
AA Infra properties Private Limited with the Company w.e.f. 01.04.2022 and demerger of the "Hospitality Business"
of the Company to South City Developers Limited w.e.f. 01.04.23. This internal restructuring aims to optimize
bustness operations, achieve synergies, and enhance stakeholders’ value. The Scheme is anticipated to have minimal
impact on the financial position and operations of the Company. Further, the NCLT has issued an order dated 28th
August 2023 admitting the application and giving necessary directions for the next proceedings. The pending approval

of the scheme, the same has not been given effect to the financial statement.
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Note 47 - Segment Information

1. The Group has disclosed business segment as the primary segment. The Group 1s collectively organised into following business segments namely:

(@) Real estate projetes ; (b) Rental Activities. Segments have been identified as reportable segments by the Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM?). chmcnr profit amounts are
evaluated regularly by the Board, which has been identified as the CODM, in deaiding how 1o allocate resources and in assessing performance.

Segment Revenue, Results, Assets and Lmbihties melude the respective amounts idenufiable to each of the segments and amount allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated expenditure
consists of common expenditure incurred for all the segments and expenses meurred at corporate level. The assets and habilities that cannot be allocated between the segments are shown as

unallocated corporate assets and habilities respectively.

2. "The accountng pohcies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group accounting pohcies described in Note 2. Segment profit (Earnings before interest, depreciation and
amortization, and tax) amounts are evaluated regularly by the Board that has been identified as 1ts CODM in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. The Group’s
financing (including finance costs and finance income) and income taxes are reviewed on an overall basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

3. The Group Company's activities are also outside India and hence separate geographical segment disclosure is considered necessary.
4. The net expenses and income, which are not directly attributable to a particular Business  Segment, are shown as unallocated corporate cost and income respectively.

5. Assets and  Labilities that can not be allocated between the segments are shown as a part of unallocated corporate assets and labilities respectively.

6. The Group does not have any major customer 1.c. Revenue from transactions with a single external customer does not amount to 10% or more of the Group's Revenue.

The following table presents revenue and profit information for the Group's operating segment for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Total - (Rs. in lacs)
| Real Estate Projects Rental Activities Hospitality Zone Unallocated Total
| 202223 [ 202122 | 202223 | 202122 | 2022-23 | 202122 202223 | 202122 2022-23 2021-22
2602314 | 93,559.49 ,,,,‘L?W--“’-"’i LS| 2050 o | o248 - | 4549699 | 1,09,060.67
2602304 9355949 1936933 1550118 | 205 - | 10248 ji; = 45,496.99 | 1,09,060.67
= - — 4 1 e e e L .- ==

e 810677, 83638 15300 | 114555 9597] 10248 | 457.67 | 2343371 | 20,239.59

I ‘ - 1 - T 690928 795.66 6,969.28 795.66

erating Profit/(loss) 810677 |  8§356.38 | 15,32043 | 11425 0597 - (6,866.80)|  (338.01)|  16,464.43 |  19,443.93
[Other Income - 307868 | 466431 820204] 433 - - 11,280.72 5,097.86
dther Income ] ] L 14921 51738 149.21 517.58

7 REERTT 7193»._5747* = - 149.61 162.96

|Unallocated Interest Income | 1,315.06 | 1,515.47 1,315.06 1,515.47
)cn.\'qs | 6,837.90 | - =1 | ! 7,958.82 48,994.63

Unallocs I | - 522877 143316 522877 7,433.16
[Profit /(loss) Befors. 71 ax 349356 | (34, 13844  22,438.06 '7 892493 | (95.97) | (10877.44)[ (5739.04)] 1495822 | (30,952.25)
Current 1 . . L 234442 ] 35559 | 234442 355.59 |
7777777 N | - I D 788 | 676,08 | 788 6768 |
[income Tax of l ‘arkicr Years B ‘[ | { i | ) (29.26) 0.18 -29.26 0.18 |
|Net Profit/(loss) after Tax | 349356 | (34,138.15)|  22,438.06 | 892493 |  (95.97) - (13,200.48)|  6,070.89 | 12,635.18 |  (31,984.70)

The following table presents assets and labilities information for the Group's operating segment for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021
(Rs. in lacs)

:i’;};i;c11lurs 7 . " Real Vlj:,rsr.itc Projects i Hospxullty /9{1} ~ Unallocated [ Total J
7 2022-23 | 7727021 -2 202122 | 202223 | 202122 2 | s 202122 | 202223 | 202122
Segment Asses ) 966972 2383304 G0,647.02 N B -] | 7787211 8448006
Unallocated Comporate Assets - | 7508711 8389187 7350871 [ 83,891.87
,IO,'ﬂl, Assu: ‘),676‘).7277 ) 23,833.04_ ) 68 70%}9 60,647.02 o= e 73 508. 71 83,8‘{1_.87 | 1,51,380.82 1,68,371.93
See——— SRS — . S 3 B ‘ . J
Duqmu\( Liabihtics i [ mo0iis | agsses T T 0903 93,4547
Unalloc: Corporate | nb:lmu ! | O N o 775‘),262,54 ()4 963.56 | ! 59,262.54 64,963.56
Total Liabilitics T 48,912.88 65,9577 22,001.15 | 27,958.94 = - 59,262.54 | 64,963.56 ! 1,30,176.57 |  1,58,418.27
0880 Faal B L) Ll . L L Lo o2 Y S T 2 ! I
- . - - O S | | e ]
Capatal Fxpenditure Incurred |
-apita I . L S L | ——
Unallocated Capual lxpenditure incurred |
- e e e g ‘
Deprecianon and Amortisation expense | 967.10 i 19.93 1,2:41.42 | - 246.14 | 0.92 1 1,213.24 1,262.26 |
S IO NS SN S| 1 1 N

As the Group primanly operates in India and therefore the analysis of Geographical segments 1s demarcated into its Indian and overseas operations as under:
(Rs. in lacs)

Revenue from Operations
2022-23 2021-22
Indin | 30,744.73 21,628.38
Overseas [ 14,752.26 87,432.28

I'he following table shows the carrying amount of segment Non-Current Assets by geographical area to which these assets are attributable:
(Rs. in lacs)

Carrying Amount of Non Current Assets

o . l

As at 31st Mar 2023 As at 31st Mar 2022
[India | 27,489.32 25,461.00
[Overseas | 10,774.22 18,353.59

Note 48:

All figures are m Rupees Lakhs. Figures marked wath (*) are below the rounding of norm adopted by the Group.
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49 Group Information

(Rs. in lacs)

Name

Country of
incorporation
and operation

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

SUBSIDIARIES

(%)

(%0)

South City Matrix Infrastructure I.td

India

99.65

99.65

- Bengal Anmol South City Infrastructure Ltd

India

69.65

69.65

South City Property Management Pvt Ltd

India

100.00

100.00

South City Developers Pyt 1.td

India

100.00

100.00

- AA Infraproperties Pvt Ltd

India

100.00

100.00

South City Retreat Property Management Pvt Ltd

India

100.00

100.00

Indocean Developers Private Limited

Sri Lanka

100.00

100.00

o AA Infra (Middle East) Ttd.

Middle Fast

100.00

100.00

AA Infra properties (Jafza) Ltd

Middle Hast

100.00

100.00

South City International School

India

51.00

51.00

High Rise Developers Pvt Ltd

Sri Lanka

100.00

JOINT VENTURES

Kolkata Metropolitian South City Development Ltd

India

49.97

49.97
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I."The Group's interests in Joint Ventures are reported as Financial assets - Investments.

2. KMDA by way of advertisement dated 18/12/2006 in various newspapers had invited bids for development of residential cum commercial projects. South City &
Merlin were willing to participate in the bidding process and therefore formed a consortium which was termed as “South City Merlin Consortium”. Subsequent to the
acceptance of the consortium’s bids, MOU dated 17/12/2007 was executed by which 4.40 acres land (the Said Land) was allotted in favour of Consortium by the
KMDA. The Consortium as consideration paid an amount of Rs.11.41 crore to the KMDA and MOU was entered into, as aforesaid.

As the entire project was to be carried out on a joint venture basis, a new company was floated in the name and style of M/s. Kolkata Metropolitan South City
Development Lid. (KMSCDL) with authorised share capital of Rs.100.00 Lacs. The Consortium had agreed to subscribe 4,99,700 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
aggregatng 1o Rs. 49.97 Lacs by signing the Memorandum of Assoctation of aforesaid KMSCDIL. However, due to encroachment within the said land, KMDA couldn’t
handover the said land to the Consortium and accordingly the matter took turn into liigation for non - handing over of land and also for refund of money. Further to be

noted that a Supplemental MOU dated 16/11/2011 was executed where in total area of land was revised to 3.67 Acres.

Inspite of repeated requests and reminders, KMDA did not handover the said land. The Consortium subsequently requested for refund of sum paid to KMDA together
with interest as well as reimbursement of expenses incurred. On the failure of KMDA, the consortium invoked the Arbitration Clause contained in the said MOU for
adjudicating the disputes. Finally, in terms of section 11 of Arbitration and Conciliation :\ct, 1996, Mr. Jayanta Kumar Mitra was appointed as Sole Arbitrator.

"The said Arbitration proceeding has now been completed and the Ld. Sole Arbitrator has also passed the Award on 22/06/2020, subsequently modified on 14.08.2020. In
terms of the said award, KMDA has been directed to pay (i) the principal sum of Rs.11.41 crores, (i) Interest on the said Principal sum @15% per annum from
17/12/2007 1o 4l date, amounting to Rs. 21.25 croes, (i) Rs.62.33 lacs towards damages by way of expenses incurred by the Consortium towards preliminary and other
expenses and (1v) Rs.22.43 lacs towards interest on Rs.62.33 lacs and (v) Rs.100 for damage, and (vi) Costs of the proceedings of Rs.45,00,000. However, the claim of

damages of the Consortium has not been allowed.

Being aggrieved with the said Award, KMDA has moved before the Hon’ble High Court to quash the said Award. The Consortium has also filed an application before the
Hon’ble High Court against the said award for not allowing damages. In terms of the order dated 03.02.2021 passed by IHonourablke High Court at Calcutta, KMDA
deposited Rs.11,41,40,000/- with the Registrar High Court. However the Consortium's application of withdrawl of said sum was not allowed by the High Court and
challenging such refusal, the Consortium has moved Honourable Supreem Court, where the prayer for withdrawl is pending. The main matters being AP. 351 and 353 of
2020 has been dismissed on heearing both the sides by Honourable Justice Rajasckhar Mantha by a Judgment dated 22.07.2023, thereby uphelding the Award dated 22nd

June, 2020, considering 1t to be valid and binding on Parties.
8 ]
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Additional information as required by paragraph 2 of the general instructions for preparation of consolidation financial statements to schedule IIT to the Companies Act 2013:

Net Assets, ic, Total Assets ; ; Share in Other Share in Total Comprchensive
. » A Share in profit or loss 3
minus Total Liabilities Comprehensive Income Income
Name of Entity
As % of As Y of As % of As % of
consolidated Amount consolidated Amount consolidated Amount consolidated Amount
net assets profit or loss profit or loss profit or loss

Parent
South City (Kolkata) Projects Limited 290.08% 61,510.21 81.26% 10,384.44 0.24% (3.60) 92.27% 10,380.84
Subsidiaries
Bengal South City Matrix Infrastructure Ltd 0.14% 28.68 0.04%% 4.64 0.00% - 0.04% 4.64
Bengal Anmol South City Infrastructure Ltd -4.03% (854.41) 0.85% 108.01 0.02% (0.35) 0.96% 107.66
South City Property Management Pyt Ltd 0.40% 85.10 -0.27% (34.93) 0.00% - -0.31% (34.93)
South City Developers Pyt Ltd 0.01% 0.00% (0.32) 0.00% 0.00% 0.32)
AA Infraproperties Pyt Lad 26.61% -65.58" (8,380.68) 0.00% -74.49% (8,380.68)
South Ciy Retrear Property Management Pyt Ltd 0.17% (37.02) 0.27% (34.93) 0.00% - -0.31% (34.93)
Indocean Developers Private Limited 186.13% (39,466.45) 5.81% (742.42) 104.35% (1,594.97) -20.78% (2,337.39)
AA Infra (Middle Fast) Lad 25.60% (5,428.92) 49.01™ (6,263.04) -5.75% 87.92 54.89% (6,175.13)
AA Infra properties (Jafza) Lid 35.63" (7,555.10) 57.90%, (7,399:33) 0.85% (13.006) -65.88% (7,412.39)
High Rise Developers Pyt Ltd 0.11% (23.77) -0.18% (22.52) 0.16% (2.44) -0.22% (24.96)
Inter Group Adjustments 87.68" 18,591.47 196.89% 25,160.12 0.13% (1.94) 223.62% 25,158.18

Total 100% 21,204.25 100% 12,779.04 100% (1,528.44) 100% 11,250.59

I'he accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per cur report of even date

For S KAGRAWAL AND CO.CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No : 306033E/E300272

A (/Uga/\m

Ashok Kumar Sahoo

For South City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd.

/\'A»)»ﬁw*//

retary (M. No: F8011)

artner
Membership No- 306453

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 6th September 2023
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For South City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd.
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S e s SO /
Director (DIN:00920819)
For South LCity Projects (Kolkata) Ltd.

(g /—'

Director (DIN 000H9439)
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Note 52- Ratios

3 5 i Remarks for variance more than
Sr. No. Particulars Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-22 Variance emarks 25%
o
i Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 3.15 1.26 149.97% | Decresac in Current Liabilities
ii. Debt Equity Ratio Debt Net Worth 6.14 15.92 -61.43% | Increase in Networth .
fii. | Debt Service Coverage Ratio | Profit before exceptional items, tax | Finance Cost + Prncipal repayment made for Non- 0.64 0.29 119.30% in ratio due to imp in
and finance cost EBIT & higher repayment of borrowings.
|
o I(;urrum borrowings and Non-Current Lease Liabihties ‘
iv. [Return on Equity Ratio [Peofit afier [ Average Sharcholders' Funds (Total 1 1.21 (1.61) 175" | Significant [ncrease in Profit after Tax.
- o e ] = = i i e e o (i S !
v lnventory Tumover Ratio (Sale of Goods | Average Inventones of Finshed Stock | 0.97 I 0.24 304% | Increase in Revenue & Decrease in
| | | ‘ Inventory
L s = = o
[ vie [Trade Recenvables Tumover | Sale of Goods TAverage Gross Trade Recavables (before provision) | 468 | 4.67 07 Not Applicable.
|Rauo { | | l
vii.  |Trade Payable Tumover Ratio [Cost of Matenals Consumed + Average Trade Payable | 1.80 0.76 136% | Increase in average tradepayable
|
| Purchase of Stock-n-Trade + ‘ |
‘ Changes in Inventories of finished ‘
1 goods, WIP & Stock-in-Trade + |
( |
! o o |Other ses I D S S o |
apital Tumover Ratio of Goods Current - Assets Current Liabilities  (excluding 1.64 2.82 -42% | Decrease in Sale of goods
|
! current maturity of Non Current Borrowing and Non|
B Current Lease Liabilites
ix. ) ) n 0.22 -0.27 “179.62% | Increase in Net Profit
Net Profit Ratio Net Profit for the Period Total Income
X. Profit before exceptional items, tax | Networth + Debt + Deferred Tax Liability 0.22 0.27 -19.41% |Not Applicable.
and finance cost
Return on Capital Employed
| xi.  |Retum on Investment Interst income from financial Average  (Non  Current  Investments  +  Current 0.08 0.32 -73.61% | Decrease duc to decrease in other income
| cts carried at amortised cost + . 2 and Increase in investment in mutual fund.
| | - Investments + Non Current Loans receivable + {
1on financial asset [
measured at fair value through |Current Loans recevable Investments w equity| |
| I profit and loss | . |
IF ‘ of subsidiaries - Investments in preference !
shares of subsidianes - mvestments - debentures of|
| subsidiarics)




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 53 - Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule

R in Lakhs
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than More than Total
1-2years 2 -3 years
1 yecar 3 years

Projects in progress

As at March 31, 2023 229.28 563.06 - 4,758.37 5,550.71

As at March 31, 2022 587.70 28.14 - 11,171.12 11,786.96

As on the date of the balance sheet, there are no capital work-in-progress projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded the

cost, based on approved plan.

Note 54 - Trade Receivabeles ageing schedule

R in Lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 months - 1 . More than Total
) 1-2yecars 2-3years
6 months years 3 years
Undisputed Considered good
As at March 31, 2023 13,921.68 69.36 149.74 29.81 371.00 14,541.59
As at March 31, 2022 9,953.58 122.07 88.06 3245 242.16 10,438.33
Note 55 - Trade Payable ageing schedule
R in Lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than More than Total
1-2years 2-3 years
1 year 3 years
Trade Payable - MSME
As at March 31, 2023 - - ¥
As at March 31, 2022 137 - - - 137
Trade Payable - Others
Undisputed
As at March 31, 2023 597.67 4,203.59 12.59 3,131.73 7,945.58
Disputed
As at March 31, 2023
Undisputed
As at March 31, 2022 5,666.87 32.55 396.11 2,746.58 8,842.10
Disputed
As at March 31, 2022 - - - 7.04 7.04

Note 56

(1) No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended, and rules made thereunder.

(2) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(3) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(4) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered and disclosed as income during

the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
(5) The Company has not advanced or loaned to or invested in funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities

(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(6) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall
(i) directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries




SEWH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

NOIES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

N£‘57 - CSR Details

or Secton 135(5)

Am, Aveoage net profit

Company as

20.27 Crores

2(a) Two percent of average net protit of i Company as per seenon 135(5) 40.54 Lacs
m Surplus ansing out of the CSR projects or programmes oractivines of the previous fimancial vears Nil
Amount required 1o be set off for the financal year, i any N
2(d) Towl obligation for the financial ye fatTh 7¢) 40.54 Lacs
CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year
TOTITATYouTT Amount Unspent (in Rs)
Spenc Harithe Total Amount transferred to U t A ferred fund ificd und
. . . al Ar ansfer ns ansferre a . e
Financial Year (lll U Crr 0 spen N»n‘l()ulllflll; wnsferred to any fun, specificd under
Rs) Amount Date of Transfer ‘";‘,k ul e Amount Date of Transfer
‘und
41.55 lacs NIL
_\
3(hy Detals ¢ 1 SPENT AIRST O1g0; it
-~ a @ 3) ) 5) ©) ) 8 ©) (10) an
" 5 ; Mode of Implementation -
- Ttem from the list of| Location of the project Amouny [ Amount spent| Amount transferred to | Mode of | opy o 0h Implementing
« . in the Unspent Implementat ;
o . activities In Local arca Project allocated N p agency
Sr. No Name of the Project S . % i current CSR Account for the ion
Schedule VII to the [ (Yes/ No) duration for the project : B 5 <
A (in Rs) financial Year | project as per Section - Direct
n . .
- et (inRs)  |135(6) (in Rs)| (Yes/No) CSR
Name Registration
State District No
NA
Y -
NA
NA
A 1 1 - o
Detals of ¢ AMOUT sPent agimst ¢ thiin ongomy, projects tor the financial vear
) 3 ) &) ©) U] ]
- . i o Mode of Implementation -
Ttem from the list of Location of the project Amount Mode of Through Implementing agency
activities In Local area spent for | Implementation
Sr. No Name he Proj . y
. & ume of the Project Schedule VII (o the | (Yes/ No) the Project - Direct
Act State District (in Rs) (Yes/No) CSR Registration
Name number
-~ 1 Premasree (0} Kolkata West Bengal 5.40 lacs Directly CSR 00018870
Kolkata S ty for Cultura ” ot
2 fertage e ) Kolkata West Bengl 3.45 lacs Direetly
3 Friends of Tribal § Rolkata West Bengal 6.60 lacs Directly
+ Kalkaty West Bengal 0.10 lacs Direatly
-— Bhangar BoiMela Commitiee -
5 Nolkaga West Bengal 8.60 lacs Durectly
Honcho Tech for good Foundation
-
o [0} Kolkata West Bengal 1.00 iacs Durectly
Indian Cancer Society
- ] () Bhubaneswar  [Odisha 10.00 lacs Directly
Kalinga Institute of Social Science
8 () Kolkata West Bengal 5.40 lacs Directly
_— Milt Charitable Trust
g i Cherpet Chennat 1.00 lacs Dircctly
Madras Chinmaya Seva Trust
41.55 lacs

As per our report of even date
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